
Addendum #1 

Project Information 

Project Name: Waste Characterization Study 

RFP Number: F22-11-096 

Date: November 21, 2022 

Project 

Manager: 
Will Jones 

Addendum Questions 

Question #1 

• Will this study be generator or facility-based?

o If generator-based, will study participants be notified by the City of the study prior to the first

event? 

o If generator-based, would the city provide a list of addresses or would they identify a

neighborhood/route where the field data collectors can collect samples from? 

• Number of samples?

Answer 

This will be facility-based with the location to be determined. It will be the responsibility of the bidder 

to coordinate a time to perform necessary work, although the city will provide introductions for the 

selected contractor. Please see Task #1 of the RFP for more information on number of samples. 

Question #2 

Is there a specific deadline for when the first waste audit would need to be conducted by? (RFP only 

identifies deliverable due date of 12/1/23. If we can wait until the spring season to avoid snow, that 

would be ideal) 

Answer 

Ideally, the first of the two season audits would be completed by December 20th, 2022; however, as 

we understand it is a short turn around, completion of both seasons of the study needs to be 

completed by 12/1/23. 

Question #3 
Will the residential waste diversion study assess single-family residences, multi-family residences or 

both? 

Answer Single family only. 

Question #4 Would the city provide a sorting location? (i.e., Greeley Organic Waste Center) 

Answer 
Yes, if needed. However, the contractor would be responsible for arranging sample delivery and 

disposal. 

Question #5 What are the collection days? (is it Tue-Fri) 

Answer 
Monday - Saturday. 

Question #6 
Has the City of Greeley set aside a budget for this project and/or what is the anticipated project value? 
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Answer 

The City of Greeley is the recipient of a Front Range Waste Diversion Grant. The City was awarded 

$147,895 to carry out the entire project which includes public surveys, best practice recommendations, 

policy options, diversion estimates, and this waste characterization study. Please refer to the Scope of 

Work in the RFP to determine the tasks associated with this RFP. 

Question #7 
Has the City of Greeley worked with any other firms on a similar project(s)? Is there an incumbent? 

Answer 
Not for a waste characterization study and no there is not an incumbent. 

Question #8 
Can you provide clarification on Task #3 and Task #4. Does the City want a total of two (four day 

minimum) audits or four (four day minimum) audits? 

Answer 
The city is requesting bids for two (four day minimum) audits. These should occur over two seasons 

for a total audit time minimum of eight days. 

Question #9 
Which haulers serve Greeley? 

Answer 
Republic Services, Waste Management, Bunting, Mile High and several other smaller companies. 

Question #10 
Which sector(s) and streams do(es) each hauler service? Residential, commercial, garbage, recycle, 

organics, construction debris? 

Answer 
There are no restrictions on what sectors or streams each hauler services. 

Question #11 
Which sectors and streams does the City wish to include in the study? 

Answer 
Residential single family and all waste generated. 

Question #12 
Which solid waste facilities (landfills, transfer stations, and recovery facilities) receive waste from the 

City? 

Answer 
Primarily the Ault landfill which is managed by Waste Management. 

Question #13 
Are the haulers aware of the upcoming study and have they indicated they are willing to support the 

study? 

Answer 
Yes 

Question #14 
Are the solid waste facilities aware of the upcoming study and have they indicated they are willing to 

support the study? 

Answer 
Yes 

Question #15 
Will the City be responsible for ensuring the support of the haulers and facilities or will that be the 

successful bidder’s responsibility? 

Answer 
The city will be responsible for ensuring support. 

Question #16 

The RFP notes the Waste Audit Protocol is due 15 days after award notification. Can this language be 

changed to note that the Waste Audit Protocol is due 15 business days after a receipt of a fully 

executed contract? 

Answer 
Yes 
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Question #17 

Given the holidays and the weekend, there are only 2.5 business days between the issuance of final 

addenda and the proposal due date. The addenda typically contain information that is critical to the 

preparation of a responsive proposal and accurate budget. Can the proposal deadline be extended until 

12/7 to allow bidders the time to develop high quality responses? 

Answer 

Yes, please see the revised RFP schedule below. 

Schedule of Events (subject to change) All times are MST 

RFP Issued 11/01/2022 

Optional Virtual Pre-Proposal Conference 11/10/2022 – 12:30PM – 1:00PM MST via 
Microsoft Teams meeting, please click 
link below 

Inquiry Deadline 11/16/2022 before 3:00PM MST 

Final Addendum Issued 11/21/2022 

Proposal Due Date 12/07/2022 before 2:00PM MST - 
emailed to purchasing@greeleygov.com 

Interviews (tentative) TBD 

Notice of Award (tentative) 12/14/2022 

Question #18 

Is a completed Certificate of Insurance required for the proposal or is an example certificate from 

another project sufficient with an acknowledgement that a completed certificate naming the City as an 

additional insured is required before a contract can be executed? 

Answer 

The City does not require to be named as an additional insured until at which time the selected firm 

begins the contracting process. No Certificate of Insurance is needed in the proposal submission. 

Question #19 
Does the City have a list of attendees for the Pre-proposal Conference? 

Answer 
Yes. Beth Lenz, Will Jones, Shantelle Griego and Brian with SSC Engineering. 

Question #20 

The project requires “multi-Day” seasonal waste audits. The number of days in each multi-Day audit is 

directly dependent on the total budget available for the project. Please provide either (a) the project 

budget, or (b) the number of days for each multi-Day audit. 

Answer 
The city is requesting bids for two (four day minimum) audits. These should occur over two seasons 

for a total audit time minimum of eight days. 

Question #21 

Is the requirement to complete the first seasonal audit by December 20 a mandatory specification? 

Would the City consider a winter2022-23/spring 2023 (or winter 2022-23/summer 2023; or spring 

2023/fall 2023) schedule in place of the apparent fall 2022/spring 2023 schedule? 

Answer 
Not a requirement; however, preferred if possible. 
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